

Town Clerk: Dan Ledger The Town Hall, 1 High Street, CULLOMPTON, EX15 1AB <u>enquiries@cullomptontowncouncil.gov.uk</u> 01884 38249

DATED TUESDAY 31 OCTOBER 2023 AT 7:00PM AT CULLOMPTON TOWN HALL

MINUTES OF MEETING OF THE PLANNING, LICENSING AND STRATEGIC GROWTH COMMITTEE

PRESENT:

Councillors: E Buczkowski, J Buczkowski, T Spring, J Stanford

Officers: The Town Council, Deputy Clerk

Others: Jonathan Coombes (Pegasus), Dominic Fryer (Danescroft), Alex Holbert (Pegasus

Group), Dan Angell (tfa Ltd) and Mid Devon District Councillor M Fletcher.

P23/013 Election of Chair. In the absence of Councillor R Dietrich, Councillor J Buczkowski was

elected Chair for this meeting only.

P23/014 Apologies for Absences. Apologies were received and accepted from Councillor J

Johns.

P23/015 Declaration of Interest & Dispensations. There were no Declarations of Interests

made and no Dispensations granted.

P23/016 Public Question Time.

Mid Devon District Councillor M Fletcher spoke to Agenda item 4 (P23/016) as a resident and representative of the area:

Does the proposed development align with the current NPPF guidelines for sustainable development and the local plan, SDP, and Neighbourhood plan? The developer stated that, whilst there was some divergence from these documents, these divergences were minor and of a technical nature.

How do the proposals contribute to the outlined principles of the masterplan, specifically in reducing carbon emissions and car reliance? The developer responded that there was an allowance for bus travel, mobility hubs, active travel solutions and electric vehicle charging. However, much of the detail is reserved for the Reserved Matters application as the sustainable travel sector and carbon neutral solutions is so fast moving that it is impossible to mandate for a this stage in the development process.

Can you explain how the phased approach to development fits into the overall strategy and ensure timely delivery of ancillary developments (i.e. relief road, J28 improvements)? This question was covered in the question and answer session at Minute P23/017.

What is the plan if funding and consent for transport developments, like the relief road, is not secured? Is there an alternative scenario considered? *This question was covered in the question and answer session at Minute P23/017.*

How will timely access to new nursery and primary provision be ensured, and what plans are in place for secondary school students? The developer stated that Primary and Secondary school provision would be delivered as part of the wider development.

How will GP practices accommodate the increased population, and can you provide more details on the on-site health provision and NHS dentistry plans? The developer stated that NHS and dentistry issues were a national one but is aware that it is an issue; there is a GP practice in the community hub and it may well become a satellite practice to one of those already in existence. NHS dentistry is also a national issue.

How will the heavy reliance on cars be addressed to align with sustainability goals, and what alternatives to single-occupancy car travel are being considered? What measures are in place to address climate change in the transport chapter, and how will low-carbon travel options, on-site energy generation, and EV charging be integrated into the proposal for environmental sustainability? The developer will consider with stakeholders in terms of active travel solutions. They will be providing what is within their control in terms of transport and the environment.

P23/017 Danescroft Limited. Danescroft Limited, together with representatives of Pegasus Limited and tfa Limited, attended the meeting to speak on their proposals (23/01440/MOUT) for residential development at Langland's Farm:

The application is for Outline permission for up to 1,100 dwellings and associated infrastructure at the South East of the allocation including a community hub centred around existing businesses at Newlands Farm and is a starting point rather than a binary yes or no proposal.

Community consultations have already taken place on the proposal.

Questions from the Committee to the developer included:

There was a question on the phasing of road and community infrastructure. The developer responded that the Planning Authority is currently looking at a phasing strategy and a phasing plan will come forward together with funding requirements for infrastructure; will include capacity increases at Junction 28 of the M5 motorway and the Town Centre Relief Road. This application is a starting point and is to ensure that the infrastructure should be delivered as soon as practicable whilst maintaining sustainability of the development.

It was stated that the Culm Garden Village Supplementary Planning Document states that homes will not be delivered prior the Town Centre Relief Road. The developer responded that it is working with Devon County Council and the Planning Authority to seek opportunities to fund both the Town Centre Relief Road and other big-ticket infrastructure projects. It is seeking transparency on the triggers that enable or hold back development of dwellings and is actively working with the Planning Authority to secure funding for delivery of the Town Centre Relief Road; it is also engaged with national Government in the same vein. There is no expectation to move to have the application determined by the Planning Authority until provision is made for a Town Centre Relief Road and other infrastructure.

In terms of the Town Centre Relief Road, is the developer seeking to change the policy of the Planning Authority with regard to the timing on its delivery? The developer responded that it is not in a position to change policies. When pressed, the developer stated that technical judgements on the issue of a Town Centre Relief Road

are underway which may indicate no need for the Town Centre Relief Road but they pointed out that they have no influence over these studies and the judgements resulting from them. Will comply with Local Plan Policies although policy and planning determinations are hierarchical and they may be minded to appeal should Outline permission not be granted. The developer cannot fully fund the Town Centre Relief Road although they wish to work with Councils.

It was stated that traffic congestion in Cullompton is getting worse and that NHS healthcare provision is under severe pressure.

Relating to a question about the provision of a new Secondary School, the developer stated that the allocation provides for a primary but that a contribution towards Secondary education provision is mandated by the Education Authority.

- **P23/018** Minutes. The Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of the Planning, Licensing and Strategic Growth Committee held on 10 October 2023 were adopted as a true and correct record of the meeting; they were signed as such.
- **P23/019** Strategic Planning Updates. To receive updates on strategic projects:
 - 1. Eastern Urban Extension/Culm Garden Village Initiative. There was nothing to report.
 - 2. Town Centre Relief Road. There was nothing to report.
 - 3. Heritage Action Zone. There was nothing to report.
 - 4. Metro Board. There was nothing to report.
- **P23/020** Planning Matters. To consider and make comment on the following planning applications:
 - 1. <u>23/00772/PATH</u>. Proposed diversion of Bridleway No 8 at the Cullompton North West Extension (Revised Scheme).
 - **RESOLVED** that planning application 23/00772/PATH is SUPPORTED.
 - 2. <u>23/00774/PATH</u>. Proposed diversion of Bridleway No 9 at the Cullompton North West Extension (Revised Scheme).
 - **RESOLVED** that planning application 23/00774/PATH is SUPPORTED.
 - 3. <u>23/01570/LBCDCO</u>. Details pursuant to the discharge of Conditions 3, 4, 5 and 6 (Historic Building Recording Analysis, Schedule of Features, Window and Door Details and Venting and Pipework details) of Listed Building Consent 19/00326/LBC (Listed Building Consent for the conversion of barn (North Linhay) to holiday let) dated 18 February 2021).
 - **RESOLVED** that planning application 23/01570/LBCDCO is NOTED.
 - 4. <u>23/01564/CAT</u>. Notification of intention to remove 1 Yew tree, 1 Hawthorn stump, 1 Norway Spruce tree, 8 Conifer trees; reduce 1 Apple tree by 1-2m and shape and reduce 1 Willow tree by 2-3m and shape all within a Conservation area at 3 Stone's Place, Station Road, Cullompton.
 - **RESOLVED** that planning application 23/01564/CAT is returned to the Planning Authority without comment.

5. <u>23/01182/FULL</u>. Erection of an agricultural worker's dwelling and garage and construction of new vehicular access at Land and Buildings at NGR 303617 105299, Mutterton.

RESOLVED that planning application 23/01183/FULL is NOTED.

6. <u>23/01593/LBC</u>. Listed Building Consent for the construction of a brick WC to exiting ground floor carriage opening at Hillersdon House, Cullompton.

RESOLVED that planning application 23/01593/LBC is NOTED.

7. <u>23/01599/OUT</u>. Outline for the erection of a dwelling with associated access and some reserved matters at 29 Honiton Road, Cullompton.

RESOLVED that planning application 23/01599/OUT is SUPPORTED.

Closed at 20:00.